From: Aaron Walsh On Behalf Of Town Planning LNE
Sent: 12 March 2025 14:35

To: Planning

Subject: 2025/0407/P - Britannia Street Car Park London WC1X 9BP
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Network Rail Consultation Response

FAO: Christopher Smith
Date: 12/03/2025
Application reference: |2025/0407/P

Proposal:

Redevelopment of existing car park through to provide
@ purpose-built student accommodation (Sui Generis
Use) building with community floorspace (Use Class
F2) at ground level, alongside hard and soft
landscaping, cycle parking, boundary treatments and
other associated works

Location:

Britannia Street Car Park London WC1X 9BP

Thank you for your recent correspondence relating to the above application.

Network rail own, operate and develop Britain’s railway infrastructure. Our role
is to deliver a safe and reliable railway. All consultations are assessed with the
safety of the operational railway in mind and responded to on this basis.

Following assessment of the details provided to support the above application,
Network Rail has no objection in principle to the development, but below are
some requirements which must be met, especially where the Thameslink
railway line, sits in a shallow tunnel underneath the Site




Works in Proximity to the Operational Railway Environment

We note and appreciate that the Applicant has engaged Network Rail’s Asset
Protection Team to safeguard railway infrastructure (ACE ID 0000135110).
Where it is understood that a BAPA (Basic Asset Protection Agreement) is in
progress. Given the nature of scheme, it is imperative that engagement
continue and the necessary BAPA entered into prior to works commencing on
site. This is to ensure that the development can be undertaken safely and
without impact to operational railway safety.

Please note our standard ASPRO & Tunnels comments below for guidance;

Development Construction Phase and Asset Protection

Due to the proximity of the proposed development to the operational railway
boundary, it will be imperative that the developer liaise with our Asset
Protection Team (contact details below) prior to any work taking place on site
to ensure that the development can be undertaken safely and without impact
to operational railway safety. Details to be discussed and agreed may include
construction methodology, earthworks and excavations, use of crane, plant and
machinery, drainage and boundary treatments. It may be necessary for the
developer to enter into a Basic Asset Protection Agreement (BAPA) with
Network Rail to ensure the safety of the operational railway during these
works. We would also like to advise that where any damage, injury or delay to
the rail network is caused by construction works or future maintenance
(related to the application site), the applicant or developer will incur full
liability. This could also include police investigation as it is a criminal offence to
endanger the railway or obstruct the passage of rail traffic. It should also be
noted that any damage that requires a line closure or repairs can result in costs
which could exceed hundreds of thousands of pounds.

Contact details for Asset Protection are supplied below and we would draw the
developers’ attention to the attached guidance on Network Rail
requirements.



Tunnels

Network Rail’s Engineer is to approve details of any development works within
15m, measured horizontally, from the outside face of the tunnel extrados with
special reference to:

1. The type and method of construction of foundations

2. Any increase/decrease of loading on the tunnel both temporary and
permanent. Certified proof that the proposals shall have no detrimental
effect upon the tunnel will be necessary.

Any proposal must not interfere with Network Rail’s operational railway or
jeopardise the structural integrity of the tunnel. The above details should be
submitted to the Council and only approved in conjunction with Network Rail.

Network Rail will not accept any liability for any settlement, disturbance or
damage caused to any development by failure of the tunnel structures nor for
any noise or vibration arising from the normal use and/or maintenance of the
tunnel. No right of support is given or can be claimed from Network Rails
tunnels or railway land.

Conclusion

Thank you again for the opportunity to comment on the proposed scheme. We
trust that the above will be given due consideration in determining the
application and if you have any enquiries in relation to the above, please
contact us at townplanninglne@networkrail.co.uk.

Useful Network Rail contacts;

Asset Protection Eastern

For enquiries, advice and agreements relating to construction methodology,
works in proximity to the railway boundary, drainage works, or schemes in


mailto:townplanninglne@networkrail.co.uk

proximity to railway tunnels (including tunnel shafts) please email
assetprotectioneastern@networkrail.co.uk.

Land Information

For enquiries relating to land ownership enquiries, please email
landinformation@networkrail.co.uk.

Property Services

For enquiries relating to agreements to use, purchase or rent Network Rail
land, please email propertyserviceslneem@networkrail.co.uk.

Kind Regards,
NetworkRail

Town Planning Technician
Network Rail Land & Property (Eastern)
George Stephenson House, Toft Green, York, YO1 6]T

Finalist
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The content of this email (and any attachment) is confidential. It may also be
legally privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure.

This email should not be used by anyone who is not an original intended
recipient, nor may it be copied or disclosed to anyone who is not an original
intended recipient.

If you have received this email by mistake, please notify us by emailing the
sender, and then delete the email and any copies from your system.



Liability cannot be accepted for statements made which are clearly the
sender's own and not made on behalf of Network Rail.

Network Rail Infrastructure Limited registered in England and Wales No.
2904587, registered office Network Rail, Waterloo General Office, London, SE1
8SW.
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Network Rail Standard Informatives

Please note, not all of these requirements may be applicable to this development

Fail Safe Use of Crane and Plant

All operations, including the use of cranes or other mechanical plant working adjacent to
Network Rail’s property, must at all times be carried out in a “fail safe” manner such that in the
event of mishandling, collapse or failure, no materials or plant are capable of falling within 4.0m
of the railway boundary.

With a development of a certain height that may/will require use of a crane, the developer must bear
in mind the following. Crane usage adjacent to railway infrastructure is subject to stipulations on size,
capacity etc. which needs to be agreed by the Asset Protection Project Manager prior to
implementation.

Excavations/Earthworks/Underground Workings

All excavations/ earthworks carried out in the vicinity of Network Rail property/ structures must
be designed and executed such that no interference with the integrity of that property/ structure
can occur. If temporary works compounds are to be located adjacent to the operational railway, these
should be included in a method statement for approval by Asset Protection.

Prior to commencement of works, full details of excavations and earthworks to be carried out near the
railway undertaker's boundary fence should be submitted for the approval of the Local Planning
Authority acting in consultation with the railway undertaker and the works shall only be carried out in
accordance with the approved details. Where development may be affecting underground workings
next to the railway, consultation with the Asset Protection Engineer and the Network Rail Principal
Mining Engineer should be undertaken. Network Rail will not accept any liability for any settlement,
disturbance or damage caused to any development by failure of the railway infrastructure nor for any
noise or vibration arising from the normal use and/or maintenance of the operational railway. No right
of support is given or can be claimed from Network Rails infrastructure or railway land.

Security of Mutual Boundary

Security of the railway boundary will need to be maintained at all times. If the works require
temporary or permanent alterations to the mutual boundary the applicant must contact Network
Rail’s Asset Protection Interface Manager.

Demolition

Any demolition or refurbishment works must not be carried out on the development site that may
endanger the safe operation of the railway, or the stability of the adjoining Network Rail

structures. The demolition of buildings or other structures near to the operational railway infrastructure
must be carried out in accordance with an agreed method statement. Approval of the method
statement must be obtained from Network Rail’'s Asset Interface Manager before the development
can commence.

Vibro-impact Machinery

Where vibro-compaction machinery is to be used in development, details of the use of such
machinery and a method statement should be submitted for the approval of the Local Planning
Authority acting in consultation with the railway undertaker prior to the commencement of
works. Where the works have the potential to introduce ground movements, Network Rail may
require the monitoring of track and other assets, the works shall only be carried out in
accordance with the approved method statement and design.

Scaffolding
Any scaffold which is to be constructed within 10 metres of the railway boundary fence and has

the potential to collapse within 4 meters of the Network Rail boundary must be erected in such
a manner that at no time will any poles over-sail the railway and protective netting around such
scaffold must be installed. Approval of the method statement and design must be obtained from
Network Rail’s Asset Protection Engineer.
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Bridge Strikes
Applications that are likely to generate an increase in trips under railway bridges may be of concern to

Network Rail where there is potential for an increase in ‘Bridge strikes’. Vehicles hitting railway
bridges cause significant disruption and delay to rail users. Consultation with the Asset Protection
Interface Manager is necessary to understand if there is a problem. If required there may be a need to
fit bridge protection barriers which may be at the developer’s expense.

Abnormal Loads

From the information supplied, it is not clear if any abnormal loads will be using routes that include
any Network Rail assets (e.g. bridges and level crossings). We would have serious reservations if
during the construction or operation of the site, abnormal loads will use routes that include Network
Rail assets. Network Rail would request that the applicant contact our Asset Protection Interface
Manager to confirm that any proposed route is viable and to agree a strategy to protect our asset(s)
from any potential damage caused by abnormal loads. | would also like to advise that where any
damage, injury or delay to the rail network is caused by an abnormal load (related to the application
site), the applicant or developer will incur full liability.

Two Metre Boundary

Consideration should be given to ensure that the construction and subsequent maintenance
can be carried out to any proposed buildings or structures without adversely affecting the safety
of, or encroaching upon Network Rail’s adjacent land, and therefore all/any building should be
situated at least 2 metres from Network Rail’s boundary. This will allow construction and future
maintenance to be carried out from the applicant’s land, thus reducing the probability of
provision and costs of railway look-out protection, supervision and other facilities necessary
when working from or on railway land.

ENCROACHMENT

The developer/applicant must ensure that their proposal, both during construction, and after
completion of works on site, does not affect the safety, operation or integrity of the operational
railway, Network Rail and its infrastructure or undermine or damage or adversely affect any railway
land and structures. There must be no physical encroachment of the proposal onto Network Rail land,
no over-sailing into Network Rail airspace and no encroachment of foundations onto Network Rail
land and soil. There must be no physical encroachment of any foundations onto Network Rail land.
Any future maintenance must be conducted solely within the applicant’s land ownership. Should the
applicant require access to Network Rail land then must seek approval from the Network Rail Asset
Protection Team. Any unauthorised access to Network Rail land or airspace is an act of trespass and
we would remind the council that this is a criminal offence (s55 British Transport Commission Act
1949). Should the applicant be granted access to Network Rail land then they will be liable for all
costs incurred in facilitating the proposal.

Access to the Railway
All roads, paths or ways providing access to any part of the railway undertaker’s land shall be kept
open at all times during and after the development.
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